
Contact:  Paul Mountford, Democratic Services  
Tel: 01270 686472 
E-Mail: paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Cabinet Member for Prosperity 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday, 13th July, 2010 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: The Tatton Room - Town Hall, Macclesfield SK10 1DX 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda  

 
3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 

members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the 
meeting. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman 
will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where 
there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use 
this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide three clear 
working days’ notice, in writing, in order for an informed answer to be given. 

 
4. Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Joint Core Strategy  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To consider a report on the current consultation on the Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Joint 

Core Strategy, potential implications for the Cheshire East area and the suggested nature of 
the Council’s response. 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Stockport MBC Core Strategy  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 
 To consider a report on the current consultation on the Stockport Core Strategy Submission 

DPD, potential implications for the Cheshire East area and the suggested nature of the 
Council’s response. 

 
 
 
(There are no Part 2 items) 
 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Member for Prosperity 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
13th July 2010 

Report of: Stuart Penny, Planning Policy Manager 
Subject/Title: Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Joint Core Strategy 

___________________________________                                                                       
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 This report considers the current consultation on the Derbyshire Dales and 

High Peak Joint Core Strategy, potential implications for the Cheshire East 
area and the suggested nature of the Council’s response. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Prosperity direct that the Council write to 

thank Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Councils for their consultation and 
to inform them that Cheshire East Council does not wish to submit 
comments on the consultation draft of their Joint Core Strategy DPD. 

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is considered that the general pattern and level of development proposed is in 

accordance with national and regional policies and is not likely to lead to any 
significant adverse effects on Cheshire East. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 N/A 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 N/A 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7.0 Financial Implications 
 
7.1 N/A 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 None for this Authority. Adjoining LPAs are required to consult this Council 

regarding the content of their Development Plan Documents. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 N/A 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Borough Councils are preparing a Joint Core 

Strategy and are consulting on the draft Plan until 15th July 2010.  There will be a 
further consultation on the revised draft plan in October leading to submission to 
the Secretary of State in March 2011, an Examination in Public commencing June 
2011 and final adoption of the plan in November 2011. 

 
10.2 The Joint Core Strategy only covers the parts of High Peak and Derbyshire Dales 

that are outside of the Peak District National Park boundary.  The areas it covers 
are therefore not directly adjacent to Cheshire East, with the exception of the New 
Mills and Whaley Bridge area which is close to Disley. 

 
10.3 The Plan identifies some general areas for growth but does not allocate sites;  
 these will come through the separate Joint Allocations DPD. 
 
10.4 The overarching Sustainable Community Strategy and Core Strategy vision is: 
 The Peak District will be a distinctive high quality rural environment with... 

• People of all ages who are healthy and safe 

• High-wage, high-skill jobs 

• Affordable, decent homes for local people 

• Towns and villages that offer a high quality of life 
 
10.5 The area will be widely recognised as a distinctive rural area with vibrant villages 

and market towns, which reflects the character of its Peak District landscape. The 
area will complement and not compete with Greater Manchester, Sheffield and 
Derby and out-commuting will reflect a sustainable balance of living and working. 

 
10.6 In line with national and regional policies, the first priority for development will be 

on brownfield sites in the larger settlements.  The Plan sets out a proposed 
settlement hierarchy with three categories: Market towns; larger settlements; and 
villages.  Priority will be given to the concentration of development within the 
market towns, whilst the larger settlements are considered to be suitable locations 
to accommodate some new development and the villages may have potential for 
some small scale development.  The market towns are: Matlock, Ashbourne, 
Wirksworth, Buxton, Chapel-en-le-Frith, Glossop, New Mills and Whaley Bridge. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



10.7 The table below summarises the proposed distribution of development over the 
plan period: 

 
 

Area Settlements Areas of Growth Housing Retail Floorspace 
(capacity) 

Glossopdale Glossop, Hadfield, 
Tintwistle, 
Simmondley, 
Charlesworth. 
Gamesley 

Broad area of growth on 
land to the south of 
Gamesley for new 
housing and supporting 
employment with a new 
railway station 

1,056 Glossop – up to 
3,486 m

2
 

convenience and up 
to 5,653 m

2
 for non 

bulky comparison 
goods 

High Peak 
Central 

New Mills, Whaley 
Bridge, Chapel-en-
le-Frith, Hayfield, 
Chinley, Dove 
Holes 

Broad area of growth on 
land south-west of Chapel 
for new housing (circa 
430 units) with improved 
linkages to the town 

1,334 New Mills – up to 
4,341 m

2
 

convenience floor 
space 

Buxton Buxton Three broad areas of 
growth in east and south 
of Buxton for new homes, 
employment, community 
infrastructure and 
recreational 
improvements 

2,225 Buxton – up to 
4,007 m

2
 

convenience and up 
to up to 7,068 m

2
 

for non bulky 
comparison goods 

Matlock & 
Wirksworth 

Matlock, Matlock 
Bath, Wirksworth 

Two small areas within 
Matlock town and 
southeast of Wirksworth 

1,539 Matlock – up to 
2,871 m

2
 

convenience and up 
to 9,346m

2
 for non 

bulky comparison 
goods 

Ashbourne Ashbourne Small areas adjacent to 
Ashbourne and at 
Doveridge 

748 Ashbourne – up to 
1,994 m

2
 

convenience floor 
space 

Southern 
Parishes 

Brailsford, Hulland 
Ward, Kirk Ireton 

Small areas in Hulland 
Ward and Brailsford 

134 None identified 

 
10.8 The future site allocations document will make provision for 35 ha of employment 

land in High Peak and 16 ha in Derbyshire Dale. 
 
10.9 The scale of retail development is designed to reduce leakage of expenditure to 

other competing centres.  In particular, some level of development is needed in 
Buxton to counteract the potential of likely retail developments in Stockport and 
Macclesfield town centres to draw trade from Buxton, leading to more 
unsustainable patterns of travel. 

 
10.10 It is not considered that this scale or spread of development would have significant 

implications for Cheshire East.  The two closest settlements to Cheshire East are 
New Mills and Whaley Bridge and the Plan acknowledges that both of these are 
heavily constrained by the Green Belt and their potential to accommodate large 
scale development is restricted. 

 
 
 
 

Page 3



11.0  Access to Information 
 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 
report writer: 
 
Name: Stewart House 
Designation: Principal Planning Officer 
Tel No: 01625 504669 
Email: stewart.house@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

• Draft Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Joint Core Strategy – http://highpeak-
consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal/planning/jointcorestrategy/ 

 

Page 4



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Member for Prosperity 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
13th July 2010 

Report of: Stuart Penny, Planning Policy Manager 
Subject/Title: Stockport MBC Core Strategy 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 This report considers the current consultation on the Stockport Core 

Strategy Submission DPD, potential implications for the Cheshire East 
area and the suggested nature of the Council’s response. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That the Cabinet Member for Prosperity direct that the Council formally supports as 

‘sound’ the proposals for the Woodford Aerodrome Opportunity Site detailed in the 
Stockport Core Strategy DPD.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is considered that the principles for development stated in the Core Strategy for 

determining the future use of the Woodford Aerodrome Opportunity site tie in with 
this Council’s previous comments and form a good basis for developing more 
detailed planning guidance for the site.  

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 N/A 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 N/A 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 N/A 
 
7.0 Financial Implications 
 
7.1 N/A 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
8.1 None for this Authority. Adjoining LPAs are required to consult this Council 

regarding the content of their Development Plan Documents. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 N/A 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 Stockport MBC has published its Core Strategy DPD and is asking for 

representations to be made by 19th July prior to its submission to the Secretary of 
State.  These will be considered alongside the submitted DPD and examined by an 
independent Planning Inspector, who will consider whether the Core Strategy 
complies with legal requirements and meets the tests of soundness detailed in 
Planning Policy Statement 12.   

 
10.2 This Council has previously made comments in relation to one aspect of the Core 

Strategy, namely its proposal for the future use of the Woodford Aerodrome site, 
during two previous rounds of consultation on the DPD i.e. on Preferred Options in 
November 2009 and the Pre-publication document in March 2010.  The Woodford 
Aerodrome site is a significant site of some 205Ha within the Green Belt and lies 
across the administrative boundary between Stockport and Cheshire East. The two 
main areas of built development on the site are located within the Stockport area 
and consist of some 42 Ha, while the Cheshire East area is largely undeveloped 
consisting of part of the runway and open space.  No other proposals in the Core 
Strategy have been considered significant enough, in terms of their potential 
impact on Cheshire East, to require representations to be made.  

 
10.3 The overall planning strategy for the Stockport MBC area detailed in the submitted 

Core Strategy remains one of focusing development principally within the Stockport 
Central Area, within other regeneration priority areas and at sites where specific 
regeneration needs have been identified.   The approach to Woodford Aerodrome 
also remains the same as detailed in the Pre-publication document.  This is to 
identify the site as an Opportunity Site and to set out the broad principles for 
development but to leave these to be worked up in more detail through the 
preparation of a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).  

 
10.4 This will allow a masterplan approach for the site to be developed in advance of it 

becoming vacant in March 2012 and for more extensive consultation to be 
undertaken on issues and uses. The SPD work will also be used to inform 
development of Stockport’s Site Allocations DPD, which is currently programmed 
for adoption in December 2012.  It is proposed that Cheshire East be actively 
engaged in the preparation of the SPD and an officer working group consisting of 
representatives from this Council, Stockport MBC and BAE Systems has already 
been established to look at Cheshire East related issues to input into this process. 

 
10.5 The broad principles for development at the site detailed in the Core Strategy can 

be summarised as follows: 

Page 6



• There should be no greater impact on the openness of the Green 
Belt; 

• Development should not occupy a larger area (unless visual 
improvement through height reduction is achieved) or be of greater 
height than existing buildings and should result in environmental 
improvement; 

• Consolidation of the two existing developed areas into one may be 
considered; 

• Accessibility and sustainability issues will need to be addressed, 
including improvements to public transport and the highway 
network, when determining the level of development; 

• Local shops and other services may need to be provided on site or 
in the local area and the capacity of local schools will need to be 
considered; 

• Retention of the runway remains to be considered but is likely to be 
limited to private aircraft; 

• Uses for the undeveloped areas of the site should be open land in 
character such as informal and formal open space; 

• The impact upon the heritage assets at the site and the 
opportunities they present should be considered; 

• Redevelopment at the site should be mainly for residential and 
employment uses but the scale of either use is not quantified at this 
stage of the LDF; 

• Retail and indoor leisure uses (e.g. cinemas or bowling alleys) are 
considered unlikely to be acceptable. 

  
10.6 The broad principles for development at the Woodford Site detailed in the Core 

Strategy are considered to adequately incorporate this Council’s previous 
comments (see Appendix ) and form a good basis for developing more detailed 
planning guidance for the site. No other proposals in the Core Strategy have been 
considered significant enough, in terms of their potential impact on Cheshire East, 
to require representations to be made.  

 
11.0  Access to Information 

 
The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the 
report writer: 
 
Name: Stuart Penny 
Designation: Planning Policy Manager 
Tel No: 01270 685894 
Email: Stuart.penny@cheshireeast.gov.uk 
  

• Stockport MBC Core Strategy DPD – Proposed Submission Document : 
http://stockport-consult.limehouse.co.uk/portal/pp/ldfcs/publicationcs 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



APPENDIX 
 

Summary of this Council’s Previous Comments on the Stockport Core Strategy 
DPD 

 

• Cheshire East Council supports the mixed employment and residential use 
option at Woodford. 

 

• Cheshire East Council supports the general approach identified that a 
strategic review of the Green Belt is not necessary during the Plan period 
and that any development at the Woodford Aerodrome site should be 
considered only within the limits permitted by current Green Belt policy for 
this site. As the Woodford Aerodrome site lies within a large Green Belt 
area that also includes the adjoining northern part of the Cheshire East 
Council area, any proposed strategic or local changes to the Green Belt 
should only proceed following a joint review exercise by the two Councils. 

 

• The two MEDS areas should be retained unless it can be shown that there 
is a clear advantage to combining the sites. We would not favour the 
expansion of MEDS Site B as a combined site because of its remoter 
location and the likelihood of access issues. Any access to Site B from the 
A523 in the east will be problematic. 

 

• The use of the open space for informal and formal recreation, particularly 
sports pitches or a country park (including woodland), would be supported 
provided any ancillary development was compatible with the site's Green 
Belt status. 

 

• The existing runway facility could be considered a regional asset and, 
therefore, opportunities for its continued future use should be fully explored 
and discounted before consideration is given to deciding on a preferred 
option for developing the site. However, it is understood that Stockport 
MBC are exploring this issue and there has been no interest to date in 
retaining the runway. The opportunity exists to improve the alignment of 
the Poynton bypass should the runway be discontinued. 

 

• The possible impact of any development, particularly residential, on 
existing services in the area will need to be fully considered when 
determining the appropriate future use and level of development at the 
Woodford site. The potential of using existing services in Poynton, such as 
the High School, may be limited by capacity issues. 

 

• The Council agrees that the key issues have been identified and considers 
the issues relating to accessibility and sustainability to be of particular 
importance. The impact of any development on the surrounding highway 
network, including areas within Cheshire East, and the poor public 
transport provision in the Woodford area will need to be fully addressed 
when determining the appropriate nature and scale of development at the 
site. 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	4 Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Joint Core Strategy
	5 Stockport MBC Core Strategy

